
VERO BEACH UTILITIES COMMISSION MEETING 
Tuesday, October 18, 2016 – 9:00 a.m. 

City Hall, Council Chambers, Vero Beach, Florida  
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PRELIMINARY MATTERS 
 

A) Approval of Minutes 
 
1. September 13, 2016 

 
B) Agenda Additions, Deletions, and Adoption 

 
3. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
4. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A) Post-Hurricane Utilities Update – Mr. Jim O’Connor, City Manager; 
Mr. Rob Bolton, Water and Sewer Director; Mr. Monte Falls, Public 
Works Director 

 
B) Review of Signage and Educational Material for STEP System – Mr. 

Rob Bolton, Water and Sewer Director 
 

C) Discussion of Installation of STEP System (Canopied Streets) with 
Regard to Proposed Change in Code Sec. 71.14 Rights-of-Way 
Required to be Improved – Mr. Rob Bolton, Water and Sewer 
Director 

 
D) Third Quarter FY 15-16 Electric Utility Rate Sufficiency Study – Mr. 

James O’Connor, City Manager  
 
E) All Requirements Project, FMPA Matters – Mr. James O’Connor, 

City Manager 
 
F) Solar Power Survey Update – Vice Chairman Auwaerter 
 

5. OLD BUSINESS  
 

A) Distribution of Information by the City Clerk’s Office 
 

6. CHAIRMAN’S MATTERS 
 

7. MEMBER’S MATTERS 
 
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
This is a Public Meeting.  Should any interested party seek to appeal any decision made 
by the Commission with respect to any matter considered at such meeting or hearing, he 
will need a record of the proceedings and that, for such purpose he may need to ensure 
that a record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and 
evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. Anyone who needs a special 



accommodation for this meeting may contact the City’s Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA) Coordinator at 978-4920 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting. 



VERO BEACH UTILITIES COMMISSION MINUTES 
Tuesday, September 13, 2016 – 9:00 a.m. 

City Hall, Council Chambers, Vero Beach, Florida  
 

PRESENT: Chairwoman, Laura Moss; Members: Stephen Lapointe,  Judy Orcutt, Bill 
Teston and Alternate Member #1, George Baczynski  Also Present: City Manager, 
James O’Connor; Finance Director, Cindy Lawson; Water and Sewer Director, Rob 
Bolton and Deputy City Clerk, Sherri Philo 
 
Excused Absences: Robert Auwaerter, Chuck Mechling, J. Rock Tonkel, and Richard 
McDermott, Jr.  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Today’s meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m. 
 
2. PRELIMINARY MATTERS 
 

A) Approval of Minutes 
 
1. August 9, 2016 

 
Mrs. Moss referred to page two of the August 9, 2016 Utilities Commission minutes.  She 
noted that “Fibrio” should be “Vibrio.”  She then referred to page four noting that “and” 
in the statement “the City of Vero Beach and electric franchise” should be “an.” She then 
added to the minutes after the last sentence of the first paragraph under item B), 
“Candidates for State Representative have pledged to pursue this kind of change.  
Infrastructure requirements with regard to transmission and distribution have been 
discussed at previous Utilities Commission meetings.  There was a proposal that we 
would need to spend $21 million dollars over the next 20 years on utility infrastructure.  
The Power Plant has been closed since last year.  We are not in the power generated 
business.  The power that we sell is purchased from Orlando Utilities Commission 
(OUC) and the Florida Municipal Power Agency (FMPA).  So we are talking strictly 
about transmission and distribution, not power generation.  The $21 million dollars is 
allotted to update the transmission and distribution infrastructure.  Also, the City itself 
has concerns with existing pension liabilities and post employment benefits that remain 
unfunded.  There are infrastructure needs beyond utilities including needed roadwork.”   
 
Mrs. Orcutt said that Mr. Lapointe has his PHD and should be referred to as Dr. Lapointe.   
 
Mr. Baczynski referred to page three noting that “Layne Sikes” should be “Lange Sykes.” 
 
Dr. Lapointe said that he would submit to the Deputy City Clerk correct spellings of 
scientific names. 
 
Mr. Baczynski made a motion to approve the minutes of the August 9, 2016 Utilities 
Commission meeting as amended.  Mr. Teston seconded the motion and it passed 
unanimously. 
 

B) Agenda Additions, Deletions, and Adoption 

                                        1  09/13/16 Utilities Commission 
 



 
Mrs. Moss pulled item 2-C) from today’s agenda.  She explained that the information 
provided in their backup was not the final draft and was currently being updated.  She 
said that she would place this item on their October meeting agenda.   
 
Dr. Lapointe made a motion to adopt today’s agenda as amended.  Mr. Baczynski 
seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None 
 
4. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A) Review of cost of legal counsel (outside attorneys and City staff) for 
electric matters for both current and previous fiscal year figures.  
Present projection for the coming fiscal year. – Ms. Cynthia Lawson 

 
Ms. Cindy Lawson, Finance Director, explained that the report provided in their backup, 
Gardner, Bist – Electric Utility Legal Services – 8/10/16 - list of costs, is a report that she 
started keeping when the City first began working with Gardner, Bist (report attached to 
the original minutes).  She noted that this report was accumulative since January, 2014 
and is not by fiscal year.  She reported that for fiscal year 2014/2015, out of the $1.1 
million the cost was about $556,000.  Year to date for 2015/2016 the total professional 
services of the electric utility was about $600,000, which is not just for Gardner, Bist.  
She reported that the budgeted amount in 2016/2017 for total professional services in 
electrical services is $750,000.  The reason it is not just Gardner, Bist is because the 
professional services line item in non-departmental of the electric utility is where they put 
all costs for outside professional services, including Gardner, Bist, the attorney’s that 
assisted in the Old Diesel Plant, the auditors, the actuaries, etc.   
 
Mrs. Moss questioned the Lower Rate Initiative in the amount of $331,562.   
 
Ms. Lawson explained that was primarily the renegotiation of the OUC contract. 
 
Mrs. Moss asked Ms. Lawson to discuss the first three items of the report, which were 
General, Electric Legislation, and Regulatory.   
 
Ms. Lawson explained that she keeps track of what is paid.  She does not keep track of 
the actual expenditures or the purpose for them.   
 
Mr. Jim O’Connor, City Manager, explained that whenever legislation is being proposed 
they look at what the impact would be on the City.   
 
Mrs. Moss asked is it fair to say that for years 2015/2016 the amount is $600,000. 
 
Ms. Lawson noted that year to date it was $602,000 including Mr. Wright’s (Attorney of 
Gardner, Bist) expenses, expenses associated with the litigation on the Old Diesel Plant, 
actuaries, auditors, etc.  The budget for that line item for 2015/2016 was $1 million and 

                                        2  09/13/16 Utilities Commission 
 



they are at $602,000-$603,000 as of the end of July.  In the coming fiscal year they 
budgeted $750,000 for that line item.   
 
Mrs. Moss asked if she could subtract $602,000 from $1 million to determine year 2014.  
 
Ms. Lawson answered no.  She said that she could go back and research what Gardner, 
Bist, alone was in 2014.   
 
Mr. James O’Connor, City Manager, noted that one reason the budgeted amount was 
going down was because costs are going down as they are running out of places to 
appeal.  He reported that at 9:30 a.m. this morning the Public Service Commission (PSC) 
would be hearing the City’s case with Indian River Shore (IRS) and hopefully they will 
make a decision.  Once that decision is made the next appeal would be to the State 
Supreme Court, which only looks at hearing information that is submitted to them.  
Therefore, the cost will be relatively low because they have already accumulated the 
documents and information. 
 

B) Update on progress of STEP System – Mr. Rob Bolton 
 
Mr. Teston reported that he spoke with Mr. Bolton prior to today’s meeting and asked if 
the cost for installation of the STEP System was available to the public.  He was told that 
the information is located on the City’s website.   
 
Mr. Rob Bolton, Water and Sewer Director, showed on the screen the City’s website and 
how the public can maneuver the site to gather information on the STEP System.  He 
briefly explained Exhibit B – Charges, Fees, and Credits to the Commission members. 
 
Mr. Teston said they were putting out a lot of information, but in reading it the average 
homeowner would have trouble arriving at a cost.  He felt that it should be simplified so 
the homeowner could come up with what their total cost would be.   
 
Mrs. Moss asked how many STEP Systems have been installed. 
 
Mr. Bolton said they have completed between 60 and 70 installations.  He reported that 
they are redesigning how they go through the process because they are receiving more 
and more calls and there is a lot of paperwork involved, which is very time consuming.  
He said they are trying to speed up the process by having things done at the same time 
they are doing all the paperwork. 
 
Mrs. Moss asked what is the timeline to have a STEP System installed.   
 
Mr. Bolton said if it is an emergency they usually get it done within a two-week period.  
If it is under the normal process it would take about 30 days. 
 
Mrs. Moss asked when this is fully implemented, how many homes would be involved. 
 
Mr. Bolton answered approximately 1,500. 
 
Mrs. Moss asked approximately how long will it take.   
 

                                        3  09/13/16 Utilities Commission 
 



Mr. Bolton showed on the screen a map showing where the lines have been installed, as 
well as areas they would be working on.  He said they have about two (2) or three (3) 
streets left and then they would be starting on the mainland.  He noted that this did not 
include the canopy streets on the barrier island.       
 
Mrs. Orcutt asked what percentage of the 1,500 home sites have less than the 24-inch 
clearance to the groundwater. 
 
Mr. Bolton answered 65 to 70 percent.  
 
Mrs. Orcutt reported that the Department of Health did a study at the end of 2015 at the 
request of Governor Scott and the Legacy Systems that have the less than 24-inch 
clearance to the water table have a zero reduction of nitrogen.  Therefore, all the nitrogen 
that is in the septic system is entering the groundwater.  She said it is very important that 
they encourage people to connect to the STEP System.  She then handed out to the 
Commission members a copy of the Draft Florida Onsite Sewage Nitrogen Reduction 
Strategies Study (attached to the original minutes).   
 

C) Discussion of installation of STEP System (Canopied Streets) with 
regard to proposed changes in Code Section 71.14 Rights-of-Way 
required to be improved – Mr. Rob Bolton  

 
This item was removed from today’s agenda. 
 

D) Emergency preparation for water and wastewater treatment systems 
with reference to the standards of the EIS Council as stated in its 
“Black Sky” Handbook – Mr. Rob Bolton 

 
Mrs. Moss read into the record the E-Pro Handbook II, Volume 2 / Water, page 13, 
Executive Summary - Introduction, “Black-Sky power outages lasting a month or more, 
covering multiple regions of the United States, would inflict cascading failures across the 
electricity-dependent sectors essential for preserving the economy, public health and 
safety and national security and for sustaining the lives of the population on affected 
regions” (attached to the original minutes).  She reported that Mr. Bolton gave a tour of 
the City’s facility to people who are concerned about these issues. 
 
Mr. Bolton reported that they gave a tour to the gentleman who wrote the report because 
he was trying to get a better understanding of how a “black-sky” event would affect the 
water and wastewater industry.  Mr. Bolton reported that because the City has an older 
system a lot of how they run the Plant is done manually.  A lot of the newer Water and 
Wastewater Plants rely on electronics to run their systems so they are more prone to 
problems from a “black-sky.”   
 
Mrs. Moss asked when does the Water and Sewer Franchise Agreement for “out of City” 
residents expire.   
 
Mr. Bolton answered March of 2017. 
 
Mrs. Moss asked if the Utilities Commission should be discussing it. 
 

                                        4  09/13/16 Utilities Commission 
 



Mr. Bolton said the City Attorney received a draft Franchise Agreement from the County 
this past Friday.  He said that City staff and County staff would be working on it, which 
would probably take a few months before they have a final document. 
 

E) Update on meeting of FMPA, FPL, City, and County.  Other FMPA 
matters. – Mr. James O’Connor 

 
Mr. O’Connor gave a brief update on the meeting between the Florida Municipal Power 
Agency (FMPA), Florida Power and Light (FPL), the City of Vero Beach, and Indian 
River County that was held last month via telephone.  He reported that FMPA said if they 
have a proposal that works within the framework of the existing contracts they would be 
happy to entertain it.   
 
Mrs. Moss asked is there a report of the meeting available. 
 
Mr. O’Connor answered no.   
 
Mr. O’Connor reported that FMPA has prepared an exit cost in the All Requirements 
Project for each city and the City of Vero Beach’s cost is about $33.4 million, which 
more than likely the City would not be exercising at this time.  He has been told by the 
City’s attorneys that there is no penalty to allow the drop dead date to pass, but the City 
would have to give another three (3) year notice of termination.  
 
Mrs. Moss reported that at the City Council unanimously passed a Resolution regarding 
the Florida Auditor’s General Audit Findings of the FMPA.  She read into the record, 
Section 2 of the Resolution, “The City Council requests the Florida Auditor General and 
Joint Legislative Auditing Committee: A) Initiate an appraisal of FMPA to determine the 
Fair Market Value (sale between a willing buyer and a willing seller) of the generation 
assets of each of the FMPA projects; B) Allocate the Fair Market Value to each 
participating member of each FMPA project for inclusion in the participating members’ 
financial statements; C) Determine fair and equitable exit costs allocated to each 
participating member of each FMPA project as proposed by Florida Tax Watch 
report,”an analysis of FMPA audit members should be able to exit with reasonable and 
predictable exit costs to best serve their customers” and D) Continue to schedule 
periodic operational audits of the FMPA.”   
 
5. OLD BUSINESS  
 

A) Follow-up to presentation by Dr. Widder of Ocean Research & 
Conservation Association (ORCA) regarding Kilroy Monitoring 
System – Mr. George Baczynski 

 
Mr. Baczynski asked Mr. Bolton for an update on what has transpired since he was put in 
contact with the Ocean Research and Conservation Association (ORCA).   
 
Mr. Bolton said that he spoke to Mr. Monte Falls, Public Works and Engineering 
Director and they were going to try to get together with Mr. Warren Falls of ORCA.  He 
noted that this has not occurred yet, but he would have something to report at the next 
Utilities Commission meeting.     
 

                                        5  09/13/16 Utilities Commission 
 



Mrs. Orcutt reported that she attended a meeting last week and the Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection (FDEP) gave an explanation of Governor Scott’s proposal for 
50/50 funding to help with septic to sewer conversions.  She said the FDEP has been 
charged with putting together the legislative ask for this 50/50 funding.  She said at the 
direction of the Governor, FDEP is to write that the only people eligible to apply for 
grant funding would be the counties impacted by the Lake Okeechobee discharge.  She 
asked Mr. Bolton that because the City has experience by doing a letter writing campaign 
to the Governor to implement the STEP System, which was successful, could the City 
submit a letter requesting that this grant funding is allowed Lagoon-wide.  She asked Mr. 
Bolton if he felt it would be helpful to ask the City Council, the Utility Department or 
whoever it should be of the City to send a letter to the Governor asking that he offer the 
50/50 funding Lagoon-wide.   
 
Mr. Bolton said the group that really helped them with the STEP System was the Indian 
River Neighborhood Association.  He felt that as a citizens group, they had a better voice 
than cities.  He said if she wants to do this, that it needs to be an effort of everyone, not 
just the City. 
 
Mrs. Orcutt said that she started with the Soil and Water Conservation District, who did 
agree to write a letter to the Governor.  She felt that the City should write a letter and they 
could ask others to also write a letter.  She asked Mr. Bolton if he would write a letter. 
 
Mr. Bolton said that he would work on drafting a letter. 
 
Mrs. Orcutt asked the Commission members if they knew of any other organizations they 
could get to send a letter to the Governor.   
 
Mr. Baczynski suggested the Audubon Society.   
 
Mr. Baczynski said a few meetings ago he spoke with Mr. O’Connor about a subscription 
to Grant Finder that FMPA subscribes to.   
 
Mr. O’Connor said that he has not found anything in the Grant Finders that would apply 
to the City.     
 
6. CHAIRMAN’S MATTERS 
 
Mrs. Moss reported that she also attended the Indian River Lagoon meeting that Mrs. 
Orcutt referred to.  She said there is a Brevard County Plan that is very well done and has 
three points, which are: reduce excess nitrogen, remove muck, and restore citizen 
oversight.   
 
Mrs. Orcutt reported that the Brevard County Plan is located on the Brevard Natural 
Resources website.    
 

A) Distribution of information by the City Clerk’s office 
 
Mrs. Tammy Vock, City Clerk, entered today’s meeting at 10:30 a.m. 
 

                                        6  09/13/16 Utilities Commission 
 



Mrs. Moss said that she noticed when she receives information from the City Clerk’s 
office it states “undisclosed recipients.”  She felt that to be transparent, when things are 
sent it should show who it was sent to, the date, and the time it was sent.  She asked is 
that possible.   
 
Mrs. Vock explained that when she sends information to Commission/Board members, 
she sends it as a “blind copy” to ensure that no one responds.  She said that previously 
she would send information asking them not to respond, but after speaking with the City 
Attorney’s office they felt that sending “blind copy” would be a safer way to send it.  She 
said that she would make a copy of what she is sending prior to sending it and keep it in 
the City Clerk’s office so if anyone ever has a question they could see that the 
information was sent to everyone on the Commission.   
 
Mrs. Moss requested that as the Chairperson, she would like to receive something on her 
copy that shows who receives the information.    
 
Mrs. Vock said that she would make Mrs. Moss a copy of what was sent, but she would 
not send it out that way.   
 
Mrs. Moss said that she wants to make sure that everyone receives the information.   
 
Mrs. Moss asked who else receives this information.  She asked is there a media list. 
 
Mrs. Vock answered no.  She said most of the information is sent to the Utilities 
Commission and the Finance Commission. 
 
Mrs. Moss said the reason she was asking was because last year during the OUC contract 
negotiations an out of state blogger received information before the Utilities Commission 
received it.  She said recently she had a question that she addressed to the City Attorney’s 
office and the City Clerk’s office.  She asked how does this information go anywhere 
else. 
 
Mrs. Vock said that information was given to the City Council at the request of the City 
Attorney to make sure Council received a copy of his memorandum.  She noted that if the 
media requests a copy then she would of course send it to them. 
 
Mrs. Moss said an effect this could have is it could cause people to be fearful of asking a 
question. 
 
Mrs. Vock noted that anything put in writing is a public record. 
 
Dr. Lapointe said if they don’t want to put the email addresses in the information being 
sent to the Commission/Boards, all that needs to be done is select the names in the “blind 
copy” prior to sending it out and paste the names at the bottom of the document.   
 
Mrs. Moss asked then the Commission members if they had any items they would like on 
next month’s agenda. 
 
7. MEMBER’S MATTERS 
 

                                        7  09/13/16 Utilities Commission 
 



Mrs. Orcutt asked for an update on the FMPA Solar Survey. 
 
Mr. O’Connor said the Survey is in the process of being developed.   
 
Mrs. Moss said that she would put that item on next month’s agenda.   
 
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mrs. Orcutt made a motion to adjourn today’s meeting at 10:41 a.m.  Mr. Teston 
seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 
 
/sp 

                                        8  09/13/16 Utilities Commission 
 






























	VERO BEACH UTILITIES COMMISSION MEETING
	Tuesday, October 18, 2016 – 9:00 a.m.
	City Hall, Council Chambers, Vero Beach, Florida 
	1. CALL TO ORDER
	2. PRELIMINARY MATTERS
	A) Approval of Minutes
	1. September 13, 2016
	B) Agenda Additions, Deletions, and Adoption
	3. PUBLIC COMMENT
	4. NEW BUSINESS
	A) Post-Hurricane Utilities Update – Mr. Jim O’Connor, City Manager; Mr. Rob Bolton, Water and Sewer Director; Mr. Monte Falls, Public Works Director
	B) Review of Signage and Educational Material for STEP System – Mr. Rob Bolton, Water and Sewer Director
	C) Discussion of Installation of STEP System (Canopied Streets) with Regard to Proposed Change in Code Sec. 71.14 Rights-of-Way Required to be Improved – Mr. Rob Bolton, Water and Sewer Director
	D) Third Quarter FY 15-16 Electric Utility Rate Sufficiency Study – Mr. James O’Connor, City Manager 
	E) All Requirements Project, FMPA Matters – Mr. James O’Connor, City Manager
	F) Solar Power Survey Update – Vice Chairman Auwaerter
	5. OLD BUSINESS 
	A) Distribution of Information by the City Clerk’s Office
	6. CHAIRMAN’S MATTERS
	7. MEMBER’S MATTERS
	8. ADJOURNMENT
	This is a Public Meeting.  Should any interested party seek to appeal any decision made by the Commission with respect to any matter considered at such meeting or hearing, he will need a record of the proceedings and that, for such purpose he may need to ensure that a record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. Anyone who needs a special accommodation for this meeting may contact the City’s Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Coordinator at 978-4920 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting.
	091316min.pdf
	VERO BEACH UTILITIES COMMISSION MINUTES
	Tuesday, September 13, 2016 – 9:00 a.m.
	City Hall, Council Chambers, Vero Beach, Florida 
	PRESENT: Chairwoman, Laura Moss; Members: Stephen Lapointe,  Judy Orcutt, Bill Teston and Alternate Member #1, George Baczynski  Also Present: City Manager, James O’Connor; Finance Director, Cindy Lawson; Water and Sewer Director, Rob Bolton and Deputy City Clerk, Sherri Philo
	Excused Absences: Robert Auwaerter, Chuck Mechling, J. Rock Tonkel, and Richard McDermott, Jr. 
	1. CALL TO ORDER
	Today’s meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m.
	2. PRELIMINARY MATTERS
	A) Approval of Minutes
	1. August 9, 2016
	Mrs. Moss referred to page two of the August 9, 2016 Utilities Commission minutes.  She noted that “Fibrio” should be “Vibrio.”  She then referred to page four noting that “and” in the statement “the City of Vero Beach and electric franchise” should be “an.” She then added to the minutes after the last sentence of the first paragraph under item B), “Candidates for State Representative have pledged to pursue this kind of change.  Infrastructure requirements with regard to transmission and distribution have been discussed at previous Utilities Commission meetings.  There was a proposal that we would need to spend $21 million dollars over the next 20 years on utility infrastructure.  The Power Plant has been closed since last year.  We are not in the power generated business.  The power that we sell is purchased from Orlando Utilities Commission (OUC) and the Florida Municipal Power Agency (FMPA).  So we are talking strictly about transmission and distribution, not power generation.  The $21 million dollars is allotted to update the transmission and distribution infrastructure.  Also, the City itself has concerns with existing pension liabilities and post employment benefits that remain unfunded.  There are infrastructure needs beyond utilities including needed roadwork.”  
	Mrs. Orcutt said that Mr. Lapointe has his PHD and should be referred to as Dr. Lapointe.  
	Mr. Baczynski referred to page three noting that “Layne Sikes” should be “Lange Sykes.”
	Dr. Lapointe said that he would submit to the Deputy City Clerk correct spellings of scientific names.
	Mr. Baczynski made a motion to approve the minutes of the August 9, 2016 Utilities Commission meeting as amended.  Mr. Teston seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.
	B) Agenda Additions, Deletions, and Adoption
	Mrs. Moss pulled item 2-C) from today’s agenda.  She explained that the information provided in their backup was not the final draft and was currently being updated.  She said that she would place this item on their October meeting agenda.  
	Dr. Lapointe made a motion to adopt today’s agenda as amended.  Mr. Baczynski seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.
	3. PUBLIC COMMENT
	None
	4. NEW BUSINESS
	A) Review of cost of legal counsel (outside attorneys and City staff) for electric matters for both current and previous fiscal year figures.  Present projection for the coming fiscal year. – Ms. Cynthia Lawson
	Ms. Cindy Lawson, Finance Director, explained that the report provided in their backup, Gardner, Bist – Electric Utility Legal Services – 8/10/16 - list of costs, is a report that she started keeping when the City first began working with Gardner, Bist (report attached to the original minutes).  She noted that this report was accumulative since January, 2014 and is not by fiscal year.  She reported that for fiscal year 2014/2015, out of the $1.1 million the cost was about $556,000.  Year to date for 2015/2016 the total professional services of the electric utility was about $600,000, which is not just for Gardner, Bist.  She reported that the budgeted amount in 2016/2017 for total professional services in electrical services is $750,000.  The reason it is not just Gardner, Bist is because the professional services line item in non-departmental of the electric utility is where they put all costs for outside professional services, including Gardner, Bist, the attorney’s that assisted in the Old Diesel Plant, the auditors, the actuaries, etc.  
	Mrs. Moss questioned the Lower Rate Initiative in the amount of $331,562.  
	Ms. Lawson explained that was primarily the renegotiation of the OUC contract.
	Mrs. Moss asked Ms. Lawson to discuss the first three items of the report, which were General, Electric Legislation, and Regulatory.  
	Ms. Lawson explained that she keeps track of what is paid.  She does not keep track of the actual expenditures or the purpose for them.  
	Mr. Jim O’Connor, City Manager, explained that whenever legislation is being proposed they look at what the impact would be on the City.  
	Mrs. Moss asked is it fair to say that for years 2015/2016 the amount is $600,000.
	Ms. Lawson noted that year to date it was $602,000 including Mr. Wright’s (Attorney of Gardner, Bist) expenses, expenses associated with the litigation on the Old Diesel Plant, actuaries, auditors, etc.  The budget for that line item for 2015/2016 was $1 million and they are at $602,000-$603,000 as of the end of July.  In the coming fiscal year they budgeted $750,000 for that line item.  
	Mrs. Moss asked if she could subtract $602,000 from $1 million to determine year 2014. 
	Ms. Lawson answered no.  She said that she could go back and research what Gardner, Bist, alone was in 2014.  
	Mr. James O’Connor, City Manager, noted that one reason the budgeted amount was going down was because costs are going down as they are running out of places to appeal.  He reported that at 9:30 a.m. this morning the Public Service Commission (PSC) would be hearing the City’s case with Indian River Shore (IRS) and hopefully they will make a decision.  Once that decision is made the next appeal would be to the State Supreme Court, which only looks at hearing information that is submitted to them.  Therefore, the cost will be relatively low because they have already accumulated the documents and information.
	B) Update on progress of STEP System – Mr. Rob Bolton
	Mr. Teston reported that he spoke with Mr. Bolton prior to today’s meeting and asked if the cost for installation of the STEP System was available to the public.  He was told that the information is located on the City’s website.  
	Mr. Rob Bolton, Water and Sewer Director, showed on the screen the City’s website and how the public can maneuver the site to gather information on the STEP System.  He briefly explained Exhibit B – Charges, Fees, and Credits to the Commission members.
	Mr. Teston said they were putting out a lot of information, but in reading it the average homeowner would have trouble arriving at a cost.  He felt that it should be simplified so the homeowner could come up with what their total cost would be.  
	Mrs. Moss asked how many STEP Systems have been installed.
	Mr. Bolton said they have completed between 60 and 70 installations.  He reported that they are redesigning how they go through the process because they are receiving more and more calls and there is a lot of paperwork involved, which is very time consuming.  He said they are trying to speed up the process by having things done at the same time they are doing all the paperwork.
	Mrs. Moss asked what is the timeline to have a STEP System installed.  
	Mr. Bolton said if it is an emergency they usually get it done within a two-week period.  If it is under the normal process it would take about 30 days.
	Mrs. Moss asked when this is fully implemented, how many homes would be involved.
	Mr. Bolton answered approximately 1,500.
	Mrs. Moss asked approximately how long will it take.  
	Mr. Bolton showed on the screen a map showing where the lines have been installed, as well as areas they would be working on.  He said they have about two (2) or three (3) streets left and then they would be starting on the mainland.  He noted that this did not include the canopy streets on the barrier island.      
	Mrs. Orcutt asked what percentage of the 1,500 home sites have less than the 24-inch clearance to the groundwater.
	Mr. Bolton answered 65 to 70 percent. 
	Mrs. Orcutt reported that the Department of Health did a study at the end of 2015 at the request of Governor Scott and the Legacy Systems that have the less than 24-inch clearance to the water table have a zero reduction of nitrogen.  Therefore, all the nitrogen that is in the septic system is entering the groundwater.  She said it is very important that they encourage people to connect to the STEP System.  She then handed out to the Commission members a copy of the Draft Florida Onsite Sewage Nitrogen Reduction Strategies Study (attached to the original minutes).  
	C) Discussion of installation of STEP System (Canopied Streets) with regard to proposed changes in Code Section 71.14 Rights-of-Way required to be improved – Mr. Rob Bolton 
	This item was removed from today’s agenda.
	D) Emergency preparation for water and wastewater treatment systems with reference to the standards of the EIS Council as stated in its “Black Sky” Handbook – Mr. Rob Bolton
	Mrs. Moss read into the record the E-Pro Handbook II, Volume 2 / Water, page 13, Executive Summary - Introduction, “Black-Sky power outages lasting a month or more, covering multiple regions of the United States, would inflict cascading failures across the electricity-dependent sectors essential for preserving the economy, public health and safety and national security and for sustaining the lives of the population on affected regions” (attached to the original minutes).  She reported that Mr. Bolton gave a tour of the City’s facility to people who are concerned about these issues.
	Mr. Bolton reported that they gave a tour to the gentleman who wrote the report because he was trying to get a better understanding of how a “black-sky” event would affect the water and wastewater industry.  Mr. Bolton reported that because the City has an older system a lot of how they run the Plant is done manually.  A lot of the newer Water and Wastewater Plants rely on electronics to run their systems so they are more prone to problems from a “black-sky.”  
	Mrs. Moss asked when does the Water and Sewer Franchise Agreement for “out of City” residents expire.  
	Mr. Bolton answered March of 2017.
	Mrs. Moss asked if the Utilities Commission should be discussing it.
	Mr. Bolton said the City Attorney received a draft Franchise Agreement from the County this past Friday.  He said that City staff and County staff would be working on it, which would probably take a few months before they have a final document.
	E) Update on meeting of FMPA, FPL, City, and County.  Other FMPA matters. – Mr. James O’Connor
	Mr. O’Connor gave a brief update on the meeting between the Florida Municipal Power Agency (FMPA), Florida Power and Light (FPL), the City of Vero Beach, and Indian River County that was held last month via telephone.  He reported that FMPA said if they have a proposal that works within the framework of the existing contracts they would be happy to entertain it.  
	Mrs. Moss asked is there a report of the meeting available.
	Mr. O’Connor answered no.  
	Mr. O’Connor reported that FMPA has prepared an exit cost in the All Requirements Project for each city and the City of Vero Beach’s cost is about $33.4 million, which more than likely the City would not be exercising at this time.  He has been told by the City’s attorneys that there is no penalty to allow the drop dead date to pass, but the City would have to give another three (3) year notice of termination. 
	Mrs. Moss reported that at the City Council unanimously passed a Resolution regarding the Florida Auditor’s General Audit Findings of the FMPA.  She read into the record, Section 2 of the Resolution, “The City Council requests the Florida Auditor General and Joint Legislative Auditing Committee: A) Initiate an appraisal of FMPA to determine the Fair Market Value (sale between a willing buyer and a willing seller) of the generation assets of each of the FMPA projects; B) Allocate the Fair Market Value to each participating member of each FMPA project for inclusion in the participating members’ financial statements; C) Determine fair and equitable exit costs allocated to each participating member of each FMPA project as proposed by Florida Tax Watch report,”an analysis of FMPA audit members should be able to exit with reasonable and predictable exit costs to best serve their customers” and D) Continue to schedule periodic operational audits of the FMPA.”  
	5. OLD BUSINESS 
	A) Follow-up to presentation by Dr. Widder of Ocean Research & Conservation Association (ORCA) regarding Kilroy Monitoring System – Mr. George Baczynski
	Mr. Baczynski asked Mr. Bolton for an update on what has transpired since he was put in contact with the Ocean Research and Conservation Association (ORCA).  
	Mr. Bolton said that he spoke to Mr. Monte Falls, Public Works and Engineering Director and they were going to try to get together with Mr. Warren Falls of ORCA.  He noted that this has not occurred yet, but he would have something to report at the next Utilities Commission meeting.    
	Mrs. Orcutt reported that she attended a meeting last week and the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) gave an explanation of Governor Scott’s proposal for 50/50 funding to help with septic to sewer conversions.  She said the FDEP has been charged with putting together the legislative ask for this 50/50 funding.  She said at the direction of the Governor, FDEP is to write that the only people eligible to apply for grant funding would be the counties impacted by the Lake Okeechobee discharge.  She asked Mr. Bolton that because the City has experience by doing a letter writing campaign to the Governor to implement the STEP System, which was successful, could the City submit a letter requesting that this grant funding is allowed Lagoon-wide.  She asked Mr. Bolton if he felt it would be helpful to ask the City Council, the Utility Department or whoever it should be of the City to send a letter to the Governor asking that he offer the 50/50 funding Lagoon-wide.  
	Mr. Bolton said the group that really helped them with the STEP System was the Indian River Neighborhood Association.  He felt that as a citizens group, they had a better voice than cities.  He said if she wants to do this, that it needs to be an effort of everyone, not just the City.
	Mrs. Orcutt said that she started with the Soil and Water Conservation District, who did agree to write a letter to the Governor.  She felt that the City should write a letter and they could ask others to also write a letter.  She asked Mr. Bolton if he would write a letter.
	Mr. Bolton said that he would work on drafting a letter.
	Mrs. Orcutt asked the Commission members if they knew of any other organizations they could get to send a letter to the Governor.  
	Mr. Baczynski suggested the Audubon Society.  
	Mr. Baczynski said a few meetings ago he spoke with Mr. O’Connor about a subscription to Grant Finder that FMPA subscribes to.  
	Mr. O’Connor said that he has not found anything in the Grant Finders that would apply to the City.    
	6. CHAIRMAN’S MATTERS
	Mrs. Moss reported that she also attended the Indian River Lagoon meeting that Mrs. Orcutt referred to.  She said there is a Brevard County Plan that is very well done and has three points, which are: reduce excess nitrogen, remove muck, and restore citizen oversight.  
	Mrs. Orcutt reported that the Brevard County Plan is located on the Brevard Natural Resources website.   
	A) Distribution of information by the City Clerk’s office
	Mrs. Tammy Vock, City Clerk, entered today’s meeting at 10:30 a.m.
	Mrs. Moss said that she noticed when she receives information from the City Clerk’s office it states “undisclosed recipients.”  She felt that to be transparent, when things are sent it should show who it was sent to, the date, and the time it was sent.  She asked is that possible.  
	Mrs. Vock explained that when she sends information to Commission/Board members, she sends it as a “blind copy” to ensure that no one responds.  She said that previously she would send information asking them not to respond, but after speaking with the City Attorney’s office they felt that sending “blind copy” would be a safer way to send it.  She said that she would make a copy of what she is sending prior to sending it and keep it in the City Clerk’s office so if anyone ever has a question they could see that the information was sent to everyone on the Commission.  
	Mrs. Moss requested that as the Chairperson, she would like to receive something on her copy that shows who receives the information.   
	Mrs. Vock said that she would make Mrs. Moss a copy of what was sent, but she would not send it out that way.  
	Mrs. Moss said that she wants to make sure that everyone receives the information.  
	Mrs. Moss asked who else receives this information.  She asked is there a media list.
	Mrs. Vock answered no.  She said most of the information is sent to the Utilities Commission and the Finance Commission.
	Mrs. Moss said the reason she was asking was because last year during the OUC contract negotiations an out of state blogger received information before the Utilities Commission received it.  She said recently she had a question that she addressed to the City Attorney’s office and the City Clerk’s office.  She asked how does this information go anywhere else.
	Mrs. Vock said that information was given to the City Council at the request of the City Attorney to make sure Council received a copy of his memorandum.  She noted that if the media requests a copy then she would of course send it to them.
	Mrs. Moss said an effect this could have is it could cause people to be fearful of asking a question.
	Mrs. Vock noted that anything put in writing is a public record.
	Dr. Lapointe said if they don’t want to put the email addresses in the information being sent to the Commission/Boards, all that needs to be done is select the names in the “blind copy” prior to sending it out and paste the names at the bottom of the document.  
	Mrs. Moss asked then the Commission members if they had any items they would like on next month’s agenda.
	7. MEMBER’S MATTERS
	Mrs. Orcutt asked for an update on the FMPA Solar Survey.
	Mr. O’Connor said the Survey is in the process of being developed.  
	Mrs. Moss said that she would put that item on next month’s agenda.  
	8. ADJOURNMENT
	Mrs. Orcutt made a motion to adjourn today’s meeting at 10:41 a.m.  Mr. Teston seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.
	/sp



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Gray Gamma 2.2)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.6
  /CompressObjects /All
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket true
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.1000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /UseDeviceIndependentColor
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType true
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo false
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Remove
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile (North America Web/Internet)
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
    /Arial-Black
    /Arial-BlackItalic
    /Arial-BoldItalicMT
    /Arial-BoldMT
    /Arial-ItalicMT
    /ArialMT
    /ArialNarrow
    /ArialNarrow-Bold
    /ArialNarrow-BoldItalic
    /ArialNarrow-Italic
    /CenturyGothic
    /CenturyGothic-Bold
    /CenturyGothic-BoldItalic
    /CenturyGothic-Italic
    /CourierNewPS-BoldItalicMT
    /CourierNewPS-BoldMT
    /CourierNewPS-ItalicMT
    /CourierNewPSMT
    /Georgia
    /Georgia-Bold
    /Georgia-BoldItalic
    /Georgia-Italic
    /Impact
    /LucidaConsole
    /Tahoma
    /Tahoma-Bold
    /TimesNewRomanMT-ExtraBold
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-ItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPSMT
    /Trebuchet-BoldItalic
    /TrebuchetMS
    /TrebuchetMS-Bold
    /TrebuchetMS-Italic
    /Verdana
    /Verdana-Bold
    /Verdana-BoldItalic
    /Verdana-Italic
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 150
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 150
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 150
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 150
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects true
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<


    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e55464e1a65876863768467e5770b548c62535370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200036002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc666e901a554652d965874ef6768467e5770b548c52175370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200036002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>



    /HUN <>
    /ITA (Utilizzare queste impostazioni per creare documenti Adobe PDF adatti per visualizzare e stampare documenti aziendali in modo affidabile. I documenti PDF creati possono essere aperti con Acrobat e Adobe Reader 6.0 e versioni successive.)
    /JPN <>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020be44c988b2c8c2a40020bb38c11cb97c0020c548c815c801c73cb85c0020bcf4ace00020c778c1c4d558b2940020b3700020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200036002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken waarmee zakelijke documenten betrouwbaar kunnen worden weergegeven en afgedrukt. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 6.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>


    /SKY <>

    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>

    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents suitable for reliable viewing and printing of business documents.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 6.0 and later.)
  >>
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


